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l. Acronyms and Glossary ofTcrrns

ICPAK

IFRS

MD

PFM

PSASB

WASREB

lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

International Financial Reporting Standards

Managing Director

Public Financial Managemert

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Water Services Regulatory Board
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2. Key Entity Information

Background information

Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited was established by the Companies Act (CAP 486) and

the water Act 2002 on 6th July 2004. At the cabjnet level, carissa water and sewerage company

Limited is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Water aDd Irrigalion' who js responsible for the

general policy and strategic direction of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited The Garissa

Water and Sewerage Company Limited is domiciled in Kenya'

Principal Activities

The principal activity/mission ofCarissa Water and Sewerage Company is to improve quality oflife

through the provision ofpolable water services in an environmentally a'd commercially sustainable

way to the satisfaction ofour stakeholders'

Dircctors

Tle Directors who served the entity during the yearlperiod were as follows

Namc Position Date Appointed

1 Mr. Mohamed Dahir
rah

Chairman lst F ebruary 2022

2. Ms Naima Abdinasir
Salat

Vice Chair

3. Mr. Osman Mohamed
Barkatle

M embe r 14 F ebt\ary 2022

4. Ms ane Akoth Okalo Member 1sr February 2022

5. Mr.lsmail Daud Member L't Febr\ary 2022

Company Secrctnry
Mr. Gikuhi Kiana and Co

P.O. Box 1271-10100

Nyeri

Corporate Contacts

Telephone: (254) 703688688

E-mail: garissawater@yahoo.com/ info@gawasco co ke

1st February 2022

Corporate Hcadquarters

Along Lamu Road opposite Garissa Law Courts

P.O. Box 1088-70100

Garissa,
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Website: www.gawasco.co-ke

Corporute Bankcrs
Premier Bank

Garissa Branch

P.O. Box 642

Carissa, Kenya

Equity Bank

Garissa Branch

P.O. Box 700-70100

Garissa, Kenya

Kenya Commercial Bank

Garissa Branch

P.O. Box 143-70100

Garissa, Kerya

Independent Audifor
Auditor GeDeral

The Office ofthe Auditor General

Annivcrsary Towers, Univcrsity Way
P.O. Box 30084GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Lcgal Advisers
The Attorney General

State Law office, Harambee Averue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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3. Thc Board of Dircctors

REF
DIRECTORS DETAILS

1.

Chairman: Mr. Mohamed Dahir Weyrah

2.

Vice Chair: Ms Naima Abdinasir salat

3

Member: Mr. Osman Mohamed Barkatle

4

t

t
Member: Ms. lane Akoth Okalo

5.

Memberi Mr. Ismail Daud
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Board Secretary: Mr Mohamed Mohamud Dolal
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4. I(ey Mxnagement Tcam

Managing Director
MBA (Public Adminjstration & Management)

I

Technical Services Manager
BSC Water and EnviroDment

Finance & Administration Manager
Bachelor of Commerce

c
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Overrierv
The extemal environment had its challenges lhis year under review. Due to fluctuatioDs in the economy,

our maintenance and operating cosls increased due to price changes and salary adjustments. Poor
infraslruclure in the supply areas was a n'lajor cause of high maintenance costs as the vehicles ard
motorcycles kept breaking down oflen. AIso, water lariffs are revierved by the governmeDt and after
some timer the rale of inflation keeps on rising every year, and this never made it easy to generate

enough revenue to match the increased cost ofoperation. All these have forced lhe company to employ
a high degree of efficiency in managing our resoLrrces to mininrize cosls. As mentioned earlier, the

impact of fluctuations in the operating environDlert never made our op€ralioDs easy but lhere was a

slight decrcase in the company's income as compared to the previous year. Also noled is the increased
power bills and chemical cost which initially was being financed by the National Government but later
lefl to lhe Company, this consumed the Conrpany's reserve hence more furtds should be avaiied to cater
for assets renewal and meet creditors obligation as and when they fall due.

Ch:rllcngcs
Human Rcsources
Our employees are lhe most valued asset and the Company is conlinuing to assess ils staffing
requirements. Customer care, Unaccounted for water, water quality monitoring and evaluation and
billing system remain major chall€nges to our staff. Through capacity building, staffare being trained
to ensure that all these challenges are overcome. AIso, our staffare being motivated in various ways
for higher performance. To increase efficiency and accuracy in billing
and to meet customer expectations, the company in consultation with our regulator has sourced billing
software and an SMS system of bill query and delivery and payment lhrough M-Pesa service by our
cuslomers hence increasing the efficiency ofoperations.

Non-rcvcnuc Witcr
Non-revenue waler remains a lhom in lhe flesh ofthe company. Aged and coroded pipes, vandalism,
high pressure, illegal connection, neter temp€ring by customers and flat rates contribute majorly to the
above. Due to its adverse effect on our revenue, the Company is doing l00olo meterirg, enforcing fully
the penalties issued by WASREB to reduce lhe commercial losses and lhe establishmenl oflhe Non-
Revenue water Committee with its TOR and budget line that is expected to identily and implement
the slrategies for the Non-revenue Water reduction.
This measure has reduced the level of unaccounted-for waler frc,] 70yo lo 33% in the year under
review. The compaty has also a budget line dedicated to non-rcvenue water management.

vlll

5. Chairman's Statement

Dear shareholdcrs,
I am pleased to present the annual report and financial statement for the year ended 30th June 2022,
The Company has had numerous challenges in the past years that resulted from, notwithstanding, the

COVID-19 pandemic, taking into its continued operation, saw a significant iDrProvement in the
provision ofwater and sewer services in this haven, In lhe year.

Water sector
Following the enactment of the Water Act of 2002 which called for a series of reform measures to

address weaknesses in the sector, Garissa Water and Sewerage Company has contributed to the

achievement ofthese reforms by providing quality services of water and sanitation in a commercialized
nranner and also increasing comnrunity participation in lhe management of water resources and
provision ofwater supplies within. With devolution, Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Ltd., the
County Government's role in water provision cannot be overemphasized. Tlre company is leviewing
its memorandum and arlicles ofassociation to incorporate the County and its environs.
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Fut rc Outlook
Due to the evidenced challenges in the economy and especially in the waler seclor, we must ensure lhat

we evaluate and rcview our strategies constanlly for uS to achieve Our mission statement and also to

shorten our response time to the slarted challenges. It is also worth noting that GAWASCo will
continue to focris on maintaining the excellent quality ofour services and delivery standalds to meet

our customer's needs. we shall endeavour to develop, strengthen and sustain the trust that the

stakeholders, employees and the public have placed in us and also put greater emphasis on a more

robust technologicai system, and competent human resources as well as build strategic pafinerships

with our stakeholders. The Company iS also partnering with various donorc to finance and facilitate the

implementation ofits capital investments. The County Government ofGadssa is a majol stakeholdel

in ihe Company hence the need for a close working relationship for improved efficiency and operation

effectiveness oflhe Company as it pursues its main objectives'

,x

Apprecintion
I would like to take this opportunity to record my gratitude to my fellow board members fol their

support and valuable conlribution to the company and the-commitment lhey showed. I would also like

to ihank the Managing Director and slaffof CAWASCO for lhe performance achieved in the last year

and the progress made in execuling the company's groMh strategy. I remain.confident that we have

the skilli and resources necessary to manage the significant opponunities and challenges lhat lie ahead.

I lhank my colleagues on the board for their sound guidance and support during lhe eventful year.

we extend ou. gratit,_rde to ourconsumers loo for theircontinued support and lo ourshareholders whose

confidence has sanctiooed important stralegic developments

I also sincerely thank the regulatory authority Water Services Regulatory Board for their guidance and

continued support.

. --(
\\
\.,-.Y. \

Mr Moherhed Dahir WcYrxh
Chnirman
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6, I.lcport Of thc Managing Dircctor

Gcncral overvierv
During the year under review;2022f23, stategies aimed at securing adequate water supply, expanding
water access to the residents, improving the quality ofsupply and service to our customers, as weil as

financial performance took the centre stage ofour operations.

Company performnnce
The Company's performance has continued to improve despite lhe nrany challenges facing it. The
performance has been siowed by the continued Lrse of water and sewerage tadffs which are Dot

recovedng and therefore i[veslment in expansion and rehabi]italjon of lhe infrastructure has been

alfected.
we wish to lhank the County Government for its assistance in the payment ofour electricity bills.
There was a slight increase irr income as compared to last year.

Human resource
The Company's human resources has continued to be a valuable asset in achieving business objeclives,
targets, and customer satisfaclion and stakeholder expeclations. Consequently, lhe Company's work
elhics are founded on teamwork, staff empowerment, innovation, professionalism, equal opportunity
and integrity.

Mohxnlcd Mohnmud Dolal
Man ging Dircctor

x



During the year undet rcviewa2o22t2o23, the revenue increased as well as the expenditure. However,

water-and sanitation infrastructure are a key priority for the Company to meet its vision. The existing

infrastruclure is in dire need of rehabilitation. To achieve covemge targets, new inflastructure will be

developed especially focusing on underserved areas and ensuring water sufliciency and sewerage

networi coverage. Financial sustainability is critical for the Company in ensuring continued service

delivery. This will require lhe company to mobilize sufficient external and intemal resources to fund

its recu;rent and invesiment budgets. lt will develop and implement strategies to ensure it can meet ils

opemtional costs in line with the sector benchmarks and attain commercial viability. These strategic

pillars are as follows:
i'illar l: Increase access to clean and safe drinking water and sanilation services

Pillar 2: Improve financial and operational sustainability

Pillar 3: Enhance customer focus and experience

Pillar 4: Strengthen organizational structures and operational processes

Pillar 5, Strengthen people and communication systems

The company deveJops its annual work plans based on the above 5 pillars. Assessment ofthe Board's

performance against its annual work plan is don-e every quarter' .The Company achieved its

performance targets set fot the Fy 2022t2023 period for its 5 strategic pillars as indicated below:

Garissa Water and Server:rge Compnny Ltd.
Annurl Rcport and Financinl Statcmcnts for thc Ye :rr cnded Junc 30, 2023

TStr,temcnt Of Perform,tncc Against Prcdctcrm ined Objectivcs for FY 2023

Str:rtcgic
Pillar

Objective Kcy P€rformnnce
indicrtors

Activities AchicvcInents

Increase access to
clean and safe
drinking water and

sanilation services

Coverage ofthe
Service Area

. Increase water
coverage from 64Yo

in lhe year 2021 to
65% coverage by
2023.
. Incrcase sewemge
coverage from 40olo

to 50oZ coverage by
2023.
. Increase water
production volume
from 10,000m3 /day
to 20.000m3 /day.

water coverage is
curreDtly at 6570

Sewer coverage
is cu ently at
45%
Waler production
volume is
cunently at
16,000m3 /day

xl

Pillar I:



. lncrease O&M
cost coverage from
s|Yo-year 2021 to
120% by 2023.
. Improve collection
efficiency from
s4Yo-yeat 2021 to
95% by 2023.
. Inctease revenue
collection from
Kshs l0 million in
2021 lo Kshs 25

million per month
by 2023.
. Increase billing
efficiency from 60
Yo-yeat 2019 to
100%by 2023.
. Reduce NRW
from 42%o-year
2019 to 25Yo by
2023.

Pillar 2 Improve financial
and operational
sustainability

Water Service
Coverage
Collection
Efficiency
flours of
Supply
Unit Operation
Cost

. Increase customer
satisfaction level
from 65Vo-year
2019 to 95% by
)o)1
. Achieve WHO
and KEBS water and
waste waler
standards.
. Increases hours of
supply from 22
hours year 2021 to
23-hour years in
2023
. Develop and
implement
consumer
engagement
slLale

EnhaDce customer
focus and
experience

. Metering Ratio

. Water
Affordability

. Unaccounted
for Water

. Hours of
Supply

The Company is
in the process of
acquiring a new
tariff that is pro-
poor and
customet-
friendly.

Pillar.l Strengthen
organi?-ational
structures and
operational
procesSes

The Company,
with the heip of
the World
BaDk, is in lhe
process of
acquiring new
soflware under

Garissa Water and Servcrrgc Company Ltd.
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o&M
coverage
currently
62%
collection
efficiency
currently
33%
revenue
collection
currently
million
bi)ling
efficiency
currently
63%
NRVr'
currently
39%

ts

at I0

cos
is
at

ls
at
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is
at
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Pillar 3:

. Develop
workplace policies
and standard
opemtions manuals.
. Asset
development.
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. Improve work
environment safety
and heallh.
. Digilization of
Human Resource
processes.
. Improve on
regulatory
compliance.
. Adopt continues
improvement
practices.
. Improve corporate

rnance

the World Bank
Utility
Tumaround
Fmmework
(UTF)
programme.

. Embark on
continuous training
ofslalT and
development plan.
. Establish a

performance
management plan.
. Develop and
implement a

communication
policy.
. Foster innovation.
. Altmct and relain
lalent.
. Increase employee
satisfaction level.

The Company,
with the help of
the World Bank.
is in the process
of acquiring new
software under
the world bank
utility
Tumaround

(UTF)
proSramme.

Strengthen people
and
communication
systems

Pillar 5

x l
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8. Corporate Covernance Statcment

Corporate governance is critical to the success or failure ofany organisalion. In this regard, Garissa

Water and Sewerage Company is committed to the values and principles ofgood corporate govemance

as an integral part of the corporate culture eslablished at the company and guides how the directors,
management and staff conduct the business of the organization. As a public sector organisalion
dedicated to providing quality service lo its stakeholdels, the company's decisiols are guided by the
core lenets prescribed in the Public Officers Ethics Act, Intemal Codes of Conduct and Corporate

Govemance guidelines, as well as the Boald Chaners and its committees. The company also has in
place a lobust zero-toleraflce col.Iuption preveDtion progmmme. The company thus reiterates its
commitment to the principles of sound corporate governance and to fulfilling its commitments as

outlined in these documents and its Performance Contract with the Northern Water Works Agency.
The company endeavours to develop, strengthen and sustain the trust thal the stakeholders, employees,
and lhe public have placed in it. Accordingly, the Board and ils committees regularly evaluate the latest
national and international standards in responsible, transparent, and efficienl management to enhance

corporate governance at the company and consistently deliver on our statutory mandates.
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9. Maragcmcnt Discussion and Analysis

During lhe year under rcview 2O22l23,lhe company recorded a lumover of Kshs. 799,236'210 ar,d

had a total cost of Kshs. 741,492,313 resulting in a surplus of Kshs. 57,743,897. This included a

Garissa County Govemment Grant of Kshs 38,330'958 and various projects income of Kshs'

459,884,726 and project expenditure of Kshs. 457 ,070,285. This project did nol belong to us, we

were the implementing agency.

However. lhese results were impacted by the high cost ofelectricity and fuel, chemicals and staff

costs. The company also recorded jow collection efficiency due to a lack ofcustomers' willingness

to pay resulling in lhe accumulation ofpending bills.

Moving forward, the Company needs to tackle the above issues by;

. Reviewing the current tariff

. Looking for allernative power sources e.g., solar power

. Increasing the collection efficieDcy and billing through metering.

xv
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10. EnvironmentalAndSustxinxbilityllcporting

Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited (GAWASCO) has realized that safe drinking water

and improved sanitation are impo(ant pre-conditions for achieving development for our people. Also,

the new constilution recognizes access to adequale water, a clean environment and sanitation in the

bills of rights. We are therefore no longer looking at environmertal conservation nrerely as a way of
achieving the MDGs, but more lowards achieving the constitutional rights of our citizens. Hence,

interventions Ihat protect the environment and water resources are crucial in our operalions.

It is also appreciated that GAWASCO operates within social, economic and environmentai dynamics

lhat greatly influence management decisions and actions on her day-to-day operalions. ln this regard,

lhe Corporate Slrategic Plan is driven by GAWASCO's interDal capabililjes, exploitation ofexisting
oppoItunities and management ofber weaknesses, while coDtrolliDg risks to lhe scheduled progranmes

and activities.

Environmenhl management and corporate social responsibility activities are considered amoDg the

functions thal GAWASCO emphasizes to meel lhe local and intemational best practices as desired in

lhe vision and mission slatements. The strategic goal for the current GAWASCO Strategic PIan

concerning social and environmental concerns calls for suslainable nranagement of activilies for the

benefit oflocal communities and other stakeholders. Key CSR strategic objectives, therefore, include

specific outpuls and outcomes upon which the performance of CSR will be judged.

GAWASCO'S shategic goals are as lollows;

l. lluild hrrmonious rclrtionships rvith thc local communities. This will ensure Ihat the company
avoids conflicts that could be a hindrance to the successful implemenlation ofthe CSR plans.

2. The Capacity Building for staff on Corporatc Social Rcsponsibility (CSR) issucs. Employees
are empowered through lraining and sensitization on basic concepts and Ihe importance ofCSR to the
company for them to be able to assist the company in driving all the CSR objeclives.

3. Formulate rn effcctive communication strates/. Communication is the heart of the success of
CSR. It is the vehicle through which Ihe impact ofCSR is realized.

4. Dcccntralize CSR activities to thc v.rious dcpartmcnts. Some level ofautonomy in the execution
of the plan will not only ensure the relevance of the CSR initiatives to the intended beneficiaries but
willalso contribute to the monitoring and evaluation ofthe inlended impact within the communities.

5. Establish strategic partnerships on CSR. This represents best practices and exposes the company
to other horizons through the utilization ofsynergies with such partnerships - "Unity is Strenglh."

6. Develop cnvironmcntrl conservation strntcgi€s. Conservation of lhe environment is lhe way
forward for self-respecting institutions. Since the conlpany deals with other slate corporations,

xvt

Carissa Watcr and Servcrage Cornpany Ltd.
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govemment inslitutions and agencies and also the private sector, it has a direct interest in environmental

conservation.

)

Chairmon
cAwASCO

\.i v
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I l. Rcport Of lhe Dircctors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended lune 30, 2023, which show the state of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited's
affairs.

PriDcipal activities

The principal activity/mission of Carissa Water and Sewerage Company is to improve quality of
life through the provision of potable water services in an environmentally and commercially
sustainable way to the satisfaction ofour stakeholders.

Results

The results of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited for the year ended June 30,2023,
are set out on pages 24 to 25.

Arrditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of Garissa Water and Sewerage
Company Limited following Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act
2015.

Bvo er of the Board
Mohamed Dahir Weyrah

xv l
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12, StatementOfDirectors'Responsibilitics

Section B1 ofthe Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 ofthe State Corporations
Act require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of Garissa Water and
Sewerage Company Limited, which give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the of Company for that year. The
Directors are also required to ensure that the company keeps proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the company The Directors are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of Garissa Water and
Sewerage Company Limited's financial statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of
affairs ofthe Company for and as ofthe end ofthe financial year ended on June 30,2022. This
responsibility includes:

(D Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these
continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

(iD Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position ofGarissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited.

(iii) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they
are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud.

[iv) Safeguarding the assets of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited

(") Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(ui] Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited's financial
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), and the manner required by the PFM Act and the State Corporations
AcL The Directors believe that Carissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited's financial
statements give a true and fair view ofthe state ofthe company's transactions during the financial
year that ended ,une 30, 2023, and of its financial position as of that date. The Directors further
confirm the completeness ofthe accounting records maintained by the company which have been
relied upon in the preparation of the company's financial statements as well as the adequacy of
the systems of internal fi nancial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that Garissa Water and Sewerage
Company Limited will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the
date of this statemenL

xtx
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Approval of the rinancial statements
Carissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited's financial statements were approved by the

Board on -\g:!-aa- 2023 and signed on its behalfby:

\

I

)

Moh:rmcd D:rhir Wcyrrh

Chnirpcrson of thc Bonrd

Mohamcd Mohanrud Dolal

Manxging Dircctor
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON GARISSA WATER AND SEWERAGE
COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the tinancial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable Iinancial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals, whether public resources are applied in a prudent, efficient,
economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Govemment actlieves
value for money and that such funds arc applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the Company has instituted checks and balances to guide
internal operations. This responds to the effecliveness of the governance structure,
the risk management environment and the internal controls, developed and
implemented by those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective
operations of the Company.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems aIe properly designed and were wo*ing effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parls of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying Iinancial statements of Garissa Water and Sewerage
Company Limited sel out on pages 1 to 45, which comprise of the statemenl of financial
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o
position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and olher comprehensive
income, stalement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations to the best of my
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the signilicance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my repo(, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
Iinancial position of Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Limited as at 30 June, 2023
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lntemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and do not mmply with the Water
Ac1, 2016 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Advo6e Opinion

1.0 Revenue

'1.1 Failure to Bill all Cu3tomer3

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects operating
revenue amount of Kshs.301 ,060,526 in respect of water sales and as disclosed in
Note 6 to the financial statements . However, review of the income records revealed that
the number of cuslomers served by the Company were 18,126, out of which only 7,927
ot 44o/o arc metered. Water billing was done to only 2,420 metered customers leaving
5,507 metered customers not billed, hence loss of revenue. ln addition, the Company has
been using expired water tariffs approved on 14 May, 2010 and expected to have been
reviewed on June, 2012 for turther adjustment as per Gazette Notice No.5321, Vol. CXll
- No.49, page '1724.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of operating revenue balance of
Kshs.301 ,060,526 could not be confirmed.

2.0 Unsupported Trad€ Recaivables

The statement ot financial position reflecls trade and other receivables balance of
Kshs.868,725,168 as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. However, the
Management did not maintain an updated receivables' ledger that would show balance
brought forward, amount accrued during the year, payments received and balance carried
forward. ln addition, a breakdown illustrating gross trade receivables, provision for
doubtful receivables and net trade receivables were also not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of lrade and other receivables
balance of Kshs.868,725,168 could not be confirmed.

3.0 Variances in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects bank and cash balances of Kshs.16,537,977
and as disclosed under Nole '18 to the financial statements. However, three (3) bank
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reconciliation statements for revenue accounts at First Community Bank, development
account al Kenya Commercial Eank and reserve account at First Community Bank
reflects cash book opening balance of Kshs.755,049 and two (2) Nil balances while the
audited cash book closing balance reflects an amount of Kshs.430,473, Kshs.438,664
and an overdrawn amount of Kshs.27,908,052 respectively, resulting in unexplained
variance of Kshs.27,756,300.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.16,537,977 could not be confirmed.

4.0 Unrecorded Meter Deposits

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.224,620,998 and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. lncluded in the
schedule supporting the amount is Nil balance for meter deposits. However, review of
income ledgers revealed that customers paid unknown amount of meter deposits during
water connections but the Management did not maintain a separate bank account for
customer deposits and relevant register. Further, the Management did not account for the
customer deposits as payables but income contrary lo best accounling practices.

ln the circumstances, the disclosure, accuracy and completeness of trade and other
payables balance of Kshs.224,620,998 could not be confirmed.

5.0 Lack of Updated Fixed Asset Register

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment (PPE) net book
value of Kshs.205, 137 ,7 81 and as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements.
However. the Management failed to prepare a fixed asset register in the prescribed
format, lacking essential details such as identification or serial numbers, tag numbers,
make/model, delivery/installation dates, depreciation rates, annual depreciation,
accumulated depreciation, net book value, disposal dates, disposal values, responsible
officer details, dates of revaluation, revaluation amounts and asset conditions.

ln addition, ownership documents, such as the letter of allotment or title deeds for parcels
of land with a net book value of Kshs.668,095, was not provided for audit . Further, five
(5) motor vehicle logbooks used by the Company as collateral for a loan of
Kshs.25,000,000, were not provided for audit despite the loan having matured on
26 February,2023 and the related amount being settled.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.205,1 37,781 could not be confirmed.

6.0 Unsupported wASREB and WARMA Fees

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects operating
expenditure of Kshs.101,132,508 and as disclosed in Note 1 1 to the Ilnancial statements.
The balance includes an amount of Kshs.2,121,858 and Kshs.1,800,000 for WASREB
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Levies and WARlr,lA water use charges respectively. However, Management did not
provide invoices and permit from the regulatory body.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the combined operating
expenditure of Kshs.3,921,858 could not be confirmed.

7.0 Unsupported Proiect Cost

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive lncome reflects project cost of
Kshs.457,070,285 and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. The amount
includes Kshs.4,119,956 and Kshs.6,683,849 in respect of domestic travel and repair and
maintenance of motor vehicles respectively. However, included in the domestic travel is
an amount of Kshs.1,436,500 that was not supported with imprest warrants, approval of
activities, work plans, signed payment schedules and motor vehicle work tickets. ln
addition, repair and maintenance of motor vehicles of Kshs.6,683,849 was not supported
with user requisitions, pre and post inspection reports in support of the repairs and
maintenance services.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and regularity of the expenditure of Kshs.1,436,500
and Kshs.6,683,849 for domestic travel and repair and maintenance of motor vehicles
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Garissa Water and Sewerage Company
Limited Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters lo
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1.0 Unresolved Prior Year Matters

Prior year audit issues remained unresolved as at 30 June, 2023. Management has not
provided reasons for the delay in resolving the prior year audit issues.

2.0 Stalled Proiects

Review of the project's implementation status report as at 30 June, 2023 revealed that
six (6) projects with contract sums totalling to Kshs.1 37,006,335 had stalled. However,
the Management did not provide any reason for the stalling of these projects.
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ln the circumslances, the stalled projects will affect delivery of service to the public and
could also lead to increased project costs, time overrurr$, and a negative impact on the
overall efficiency of resource utilization.

Other lnformation

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the report of Directors as required by the Companies Act, 20'15 and the statement of the
Directors' responsibilities, which are obtained prior to the date of this report and the
annual report, which is expected to be made available after that date.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, based on
the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0 Non-Revenue Water

Water abstraction records revealed that the quantity of water produced during the
financial year under review was 4,400,699M3 and the quantity of water billed for
consumption was 3,035,887M3, resulting to water sales valued at Kshs.301 ,060,526 as
reported in Note 6 to the financial statements. The difference ofwater quantity amounting
to 1,364,812M3, which translates to approximately 44o/o of waler produced was neither
billed nor accounted for. The 44% is above lhe recommended rate of 25% by '19% whose
estimated abnormal loss of water sales is Kshs.73,699,848

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2.0 lrregularities in Procurement of Genset Fuel

The statement of profit or loss and other Comprehensive lncome reflects project cost of
Kshs.457,070,285 and as reflected under Note 15 to the financial statements. The
balance includes an amount of Kshs.20,528,897 in respect of other expenses relating to
water and sanitation development project funded by the World bank. Review of fuel
records revealed that the Company used direct procurement lo acquire genset fuel
amounting to Kshs.15,400,000. ln addition, detail orders, fuel register, supplier
statements or generator worksheets showing the number of hours the generators were
running and amount of fuel consumed were not provided for audit.
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Further, the Management did not faidy and equitably distribute the procurement of
chemicals to all the pre-qualified suppliers as one supplier was au,arded and paid 85o/o of
totalexpenditure on chemicals during the year under review.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money of the procurement of chemicals
could not be confirmed.

3.0 Non-Remittance of Statutory Deductions

3.1 Non-Remittance of Pay As You Earn (PAYE) Deductions

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.224,620,998 as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. lncluded in the
amount is Kshs.24,8'15,265 for PayAs You Earn (PAYE). However, review of payrolland
ledgers revealed deductions amounting to Kshs.9,039,725 during the year under review,
resulting to a cumulative amount of Kshs.24,815,265 not remitted to the Kenya Revenue
Authority contrary to lncome Tax Act, Cap 470.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3.2 Non-Remittance of National Social Security Fund and National Hospital
lnsurance Fund Dues

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.224,620,998 as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial slatements. The amount
includes Kshs.2,553,737 and Kshs.558,650 due to the National Social Security Fund and
National Hospital lnsurance Fund respectively. However, these amounts were not
remitted to National Social Security Fund and National Hospital lnsurance Fund contrary
to Section 20 (6) of the National Social Security Fund Regulations of 2014 and Section
'18(2) of the National Hospital lnsurance Act, 2008.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4.0 Prcvision of Water Services Without a License

Review of the records reveals that the Company has been operating without a license
from the Regulatory Board. This was contrary to Section 85('1) of WaterAct, 2016 which
states that, a person shall not provide water services except under a license issued by
the Regulatory Board, upon submission of an application and such supporting documents
as the Board may require.

ln the circumstance, Management was in breach of the law.
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5.0 Non-compliance with Budget Process Deadlines

During the year under review, the Board approved the Company's budget on
19 August, 2022,lhrce (3) months after commencement of the financial year contrary to
Section 128 (1) of the Water Act, 2016 that requires estimates of revenue and expenditure
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of the water company be prepared three (3) months before the commencement of the
finsncial year.

ln the circumstance, Management was in breach of the law.

6.0 lmprest Management

The statement of profit or loss and other Comprehensive lncome reflects administrative
expenses balance of Kshs.s1,909,642 and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements, which includes Kshs.1,045,000 in respect of travelling and accommodation.
It was, however, noted that staff were issued with cash through signed petty cash forms
instead of standard imprest warrant (GP26) contrary to Section 91(2) of Public Finance
Management (County Government) Regulations, 2015, which requires that the officer
authorized to hold and operate an imprest shall make formal application for the imprest
through an imprest warrant.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

7.0 BudgetOver-Expenditure

The statement of comparison of budget and actualamounts reflects final income budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.326,932,369 and Kshs.799,236,210
respectively, resulting to an over-funding of Kshs.472,303,841 or 59% of the approved
budget. Similarly, the statement reflects final expenditure budget and actual on
comparable basis of Kshs.364,824,128 and Kshs.741,492,313 respectively, resulting to
an over-expenditure of Kshs.376,668,185 or 52o/o of the approved budget. The over-
funding and over-spending indicate a misalignment between the budgetary allocation and
the actual financial requirements of the organization. The over spending was against
Section 107.(1) of public Finance Management Act, 2021 that requires a County entity to
manage its public finances in accordance with the principles of fiscal responsibility. This
will impact negatively on the implementation of other programs of the Company.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGENIENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Easis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk lvanagement and Governance section of my



report, based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that, internal controls, risk
management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

'l.0 Non-Establishment of lnternal Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Company operated without an Audit committee contrary
to Section 155(5) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which states that the entity
shall establash an internal audit committee.

ln the circumstances, override of the internal controls could not be confirmed

2.0 weak lnformation Technology (lT) lnternal Controls

The Company did not have reliable lnformation Communication Technology (lCT)
controls and an lT department despite operating lnformation Technology (lT) enabled
environment like billing software. The Company does not have approved policies on
lnformation Technology security including disaster recovery plan and lT continuity plan,
consequently the critical data/information may not be recovered in case a disaster occurs.
ln addition, the Company does not have lT strategic or steering committees which could
result in non-implementation of lT governance, as part of enterprise governance. Further,
there were no fire suppression systems therefore the information may be lost in case of
a fire outbreak.

ln the circumstances, effectiveness in internal controls in the management of the
Company's lT environment could not be confirmed.

3.0 Lack ofApproved Staff Establishment

Review of the human resource records indicated that the Company did not have an
approved staff establishment structure. lt was, therefore, not clear how staffing
requirements were determined and whether the resources allocated to the function were
used in an optimal way. This was contrary to paragraph B 6 (3) of the County Public
Service Human Resource Manual, 2013 which provides that in the recruitment process,
due consideration will be given to appropriate organizational structure in each department
and optimal staffing levels.

ln the circumstances, optimal distribution of human resources which may result in overlap
in roles or shortages in critical areas, could not be confirmed.

The audil was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies Act, 20'15, I report based on my audit, that

i. I have not obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company,
so far as appears from the examination of those records and

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting standards (IFRS) and for
maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control. risk
management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to the going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management is aware of the
intention to liquidate the Company or lo cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
syslems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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iii. The Company's financial statemenls are not in agreement with the accounting
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and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 add submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the lvlanagement.
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Conclude on the appropriateness ofthe Management's use ofthe going concern basis
of accounting and based on the audit evidenc€ obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditois report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, slructure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applcable, related safeguards.

FC u, cBs
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Na irob i

16 January, 2024
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Garissa Water and Serlerage Comprny Ltd.
Annual Report and Finrncial Stntcmcnts for the yenr ended June 30, 2023

14. Stat€ment of Profit or Loss & Other Com prchensive Income for lhe Yerr Ended 30 Ju ne 2023

Note 1.022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Rcvcnuc

Operating Revenue 376,005,926

Other Income 7 498,1'1 5 ,684 295,633,261

Total Revcnue 799,236,210 611,639,187

Expcnses

StaffCosts 3 91,44t,339 88,599,149

Board Expenses 9 882,000 742,000

Administrative Expenses IO 5t,909,642 48,t56,224
IIOperating Expenditure 101,132,508 95,634,1l8

Depreciation and Amortization 36,610,943 43,354,085

Finance Cost l3 2,211,740

14Audit Fees 233,856 233,856
Project Cost l5 457,070,285 27 4,400,390

Total Bxpenses 741,492,313

Profi t/(Loss) Beforc Taxation 57,143,897 t t9,141,732

htcome Tax Expensd(Credit)
Profi t/(Loss) Aftcr Tnxation 51,713,3r1 119,141,732

Other Comprchensive Income

Surplus Or Deficit on Revaluation OfPPE
Remeasurement OfNet Defined Benefit Liability
Fair Vahre OaiD(Loss) On InvestmeDls In Equity
Iostruntents Designated As At FVTOCI (Fair Value
Through Other CoDrprehensive Income)

Total Comprchensive Inconre for Thc Yenr 51,743,897 lt9,441,732

,\ ...,'.

Na,re\

Janle3 M. Mugo

He:rd ofFinence

ICPAK M/I.,lo:.

I

i\.
'---/a.:.
Na-e \

Moh:rme

Chairm^

d D:rlir Wcyrih

n ofthe Borrd

Name

Mohamcd M. Dolal

MADagirg Director

i)

6 30t,060,526

t2
t,077,633

552,197,155

Profit/ (Loss) AIter Taxation



Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Ltd,
. Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended Jurle 30, 2023

15. Statement OfFinancial Position As of30 J ne 2023

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 2023 and signed on its

Name

Mohamed D. Weyrah

Ch{irman of the Board

Name

James M. Mugo

Head ofFinance

ICPAK M/No:........

Assets

Non-current assets

Propeny, plant and equipnrent 16 205, t37,78 t 236,361,t78
Total non-currena assels 205,131,781 236,36t,178

Current assels

Trade and receivable t'7 868,725, t68 836,964,197

Ilank and cash balances l8 16,531,977 1,.188,140

Total current assels 885,263,r.r5 838,{52,6J7

Total Assets 1,090,400,926 1.07{,813.815

Equity and liabilities

Capilnl and Reserves

Ordinary share capital I9 I00.000 100.000

Capital fund 20 31,7s8.185 I1,758,485
Retained eamings 21 833,92t,,143 176,171,517
Capital and Reserves 865,779,928 808,036,032

Current liabililies
Boffowings (Overdraft) 22 39,506,079
Trade and other payables 2l 224.620.998 227,271,703
'fotnl current liabilities 221,620,99a 266,777,782

'Iolal equity and liabililies I.090.400.926 1.07{.813.81.t

behalt bv:.a1-/W' d{
Name

Mohamed M. Dolal

Managing Director

Note 2012.t02J
Kshi

20: 202:



Garissa Water and Sewer{ge Co pany Ltd.
Annurl Report and Fina cial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

16. Stat€ment OfChanges in Equity for the Yerr f,nded 30 June 2023

31,758,485 688,594,301100,000 656,735,816As ofJuly 1,2021
I19,141,711t19,441,731Profit for the year

31,758,485100,000 176,t17,517 808,036,032As of.Iul|€ 30, 2022

116,171,541 31,?58,185 808,036,032As of July l, 2022 100,000

51 ,143,49'l 51,1$,491Profit for the year

833,921d,13 3 r,7S8,.r85 865,119,928At Ju e 30, 2023 100,000



Garissa Watcr tnd Servcra
Annurl Rcport and Financ

gc Company Ltd.
ixl Statcmenls for the Ycar cndcd Junc 30,2023

2022-2023
Kshs.

2021-2022
Kshs.

CAsh flolvs from o cratin nctivitics
Net Income 57,'143,897 119,441,731

Add: Prior Year Ad ustment 10,175,013

Add: interest

rofit 57,',|43,891 t29,616,744

Add: iation ex nse 36,6t0,943 43,354,085

Increase in in
Increase ifl trade rcceivables
Increase in trade es

(31 ,7 60,97 l\ (r98,6t3,s7',|)
(2,650;t0s) 19,250,932

C:rsh florv from rntions 59,943,163 (6,391,816)

Dividends
Interest aid
Tax (39,506,0'79) 39,506,079

Nct cash ncnrtcd from o erntin activitics 20,437,084 33,114,263

Cash flo\vs from investin nctivities
ts to (5,187,546) (858.967)

Proceeds from di sal of

Nct cash uscd in invcst activitics (5,387,s46) (8s8,967)

Cislr flows from financin
^ctivitics

Issues of share tal
term borao

Nct cash uscd in finrncin xctivitics

Net cash flow for the riod 15,049,533 32,255,296

Cash and cash valents at the ofthe 1,488,439 64,496,639

Net increase./decrease in cash 15,049,538 32,255,296

CAsh and cnsh cquiv,rlcn ts rt the cnd ofthe Dcriod 16,537,977 96,751,935

4

11, Statcmcnt ofCash Florvs for Thc Year Ended 30 June 2023

e0uiDment
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18. Statement Of Comparison ofBudget & Actual Amounts for The Period Ended 30 June 2023

Original
Budget

Adiustments Final Budget
Actual on a comparable
basis

Performance
difference

2022-2023 2022-ZOZ3 2022-2023

Kshs Kshs. Kshs. I(shs. Kshs.

Income from operations 226,93t,049 226.931,049 -7 4,729,477

Other income from
o s

1,,320 1,320 7,320

0ther income 100,000,000 100,000,000 498,\75,6A4 -39A,77 5,684

Total Income 326,932,369 326,932,369 -472,303,441

EXPENDITURE

Personnel Cost az,4g7,196 82,447,196 9\4+r339 -a,9s4,743

Directors Emoluments 2,064.000 2,064,000 882,000 1,182,000

Administrative enses 9,565,455 9,565,455 s1909642 -42,42A,187

fi1,5A7,200 \77,5A7,200 76,384,692

Finance Cost 85,200 85,200 -2,726,5+O

Audit Fees 233,856 233,856

enses
36,670,943 -36,610,943

ect CostsPro
457 ,07 0,285 -457,070,245

enditureTotal Ex 272,022,907 272,022,907 -469 ,469 ,4O6

5+,909,462 54,909,462

Ca ital enditure
Ca ital enditure 92,807,221 92,A0L221 92,AO\227

enditureTotal Ex 36+,A24,124 364,A24,724 376,668,185

2022-2023 zo22-2023

REVENUE
301,060,526

799,236,21O

0Derating Expenditure 101,132,508
2,217,7 40

233,856

Depreciation

74\,492,373

Profit or Loss
57;143,A97 -2,A34,435

741,492,31s



Garissx Watcr:rnd Scw€rage Company Lru'
Annuol Rcport and Financial Stfltements for thc year cndcd June 30, 2023

2. Stat€mcnt ofCompliance and Basis ofPr€p.ration

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounls of certaio items ofproperty, plant and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabiliti€s at their present value. The preparation of linancial statemenls in

conformity with International Financial Reporting standards (IFRS) allows the use ofestimates and

assumptions. It atso requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the

Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity,

or where assumplions and estimales are significant to the financial statements' are disclosed.

6

19. Notes To the Financial Stlrtemcnts

1. General Information

Garissa Water and Sewerage Company Ltd was established by and derives its authority and

accountabilily from the Companies Act (CAP 486) and the water Act 2001- The entity is a Semi-

autoromous Govemment Agency, devolved under the county Government ofcarissa and is domiciled

in Kenya. The principal activity ofCarissa Water and Se\{erage Company is to improve quality oflife
througir the provision of potable water services in an environmentally and commercially sustainable

way to the satisfaction ofour stalceholders.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting puryoses, the balance sheet is lepresented by the slatement of
financiai position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income in these financial statemenls

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at

rc-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable secu ties and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of linancial statements in

conformiiy with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows lhe use of estimates and

assumptions. It also requires managemeDt to exercise judgment in the Process ofapplying the enlity's

accou;ting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where

assumptionJand estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed'

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wilh the PFM Act,lhe State Corporations

Act and rhe lntemational Financial Reporting standards (IFRS) accrual basis. The financial slatements

are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency ofthe company The

accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented'

The financial statements have been prcpared based on historical cost unless stated olherwise. The cash

flow slat€ment is prepared using lhe direct melhod. The financial slalements are prepared on an accrual

basis.



Garissa Watcr and Scrvcragc Conrpany Ltd
Annultl Rcport :rnd Financial Stxicmcnts Ior thc yc:rr cnded June 30, 2023

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is th.

funclional and reporting currency ofthe Company. The figures are rounded to lhe nearest Kenyan

shilling.

The financial statements have beerl prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act, the Water Act 2016 and lhe Company's Act and InterDational Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all

lhe years presented.

']



Garissn Water and Sovenrgc Company Ltd.
Annull Rcport ind Financi,rl St^tcm€nts for lhe Yc:r r endcd June 30, 2023

Notcs to thc finnncial statcments (coDtinu cd)

3. Application of New nnd Reviscd International Financial Rcporting Standards
(rFRS)

i. Nerv anrl amended standards and intcrpretations in issue and eflcctive in thc year

ended 30 June 2023.

The new staDdard establishes principles

recognition, measuremenl, presenlation and

disclosure of insurance contracts issued. It also

requires similar princiPles to be applied to

reinsurance contracts held and investment

contracts wilh discrelionary particiPatio.

features issued. The objective is to ensure that

eDtities provide relevant information in a way

that failhfully represents those contracts.

for theIFRS I7
losurance

Contracls (issued

in May 2017)

The amendments are

effective for anDual

reporting periods

beginning on or after
lanuary 1,2023.

Thc amendmenls, applicablc to ann

beginning on or after IstJanuary2023, introduce

a definition of 'accounlinS €stimates' and

include olher amendments 1o IAS 8lo help

ent;lies distinguish changes in accounling

policies from changes in accounting estimates.

ual periodsIAS (lnlernational

Accounting

Standards) 8-

Accounting
Policies, Errors,

and Estirnates

The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or
after January I, 2023.

The amendments, applicable to annual

bcginning on or after lst Jaouary 2023, require

eDtities to disclose lheir mxterixl accounling

policy informalion rather than lheir signilic:lnt

accounting policies.

pcriodsAmendments to

IAS I tided

Disclosure of
Accounting
Policies (issued in

Febtuary 2021)
The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or
aftet lat ary I,2023.

The amendmenls, applicablc to annual per

beginning on or aller IstJanuary 2023, Darrowed

lhe scopc of lhe recognilion exemplion in

paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 (recoSnition

exemplion) so that it no longer apPlies lo

rransrcrions lhat, on inilial recogrrition, give rise

to equal ta,\able and deductible temporary

differences.

iodsAmendmenls 1o

IAS l2 rirled

Dcferred Tax

Related to Assets

and Liabililies
arising from a

Single
TraIsactio,)
(issued in May

202t)

IEE t@ Iry

3

Effective for annual

per;ods beginniDg on or
after I'r January 2023.



Garissa Water and Soverage Company Ltd
Annual Rcport and Financial Statemenls for the ycrr endcd June 30, 2023

Notcs to the Finnncial Statements (Continucd)

Application of New and Rcvised Intcrnational Fin.ncirl Reporting Standards
(rrRS)
ii. New and amended slandards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year

ended 30 June 2023.

Amendments to IAS

I titled Classification

of Liabilities as

Current or Non-

curent (issued in

Jaruary 2020,

amended in October

2022)

The amendments, applicable to annual

periods beginning on or after lst January

2024, clalfy a criterion in IAS I for

classifing a Iiability as Don-current: the

requirement for an entity to have the

right to defer s€tlleme,rt of lhe Iiability

for at least I2 months after th€ reportinS

period

The amendmenls ara

effective for annual periods

beSinning on or afterJanuary

l, 2024. Earlier application is

permitted.

Amendme,rt lo IFRS

16 tirled Lease

Liability in a Sale

and Leaseback

(issued in September

2022)

The ameDdnrent, applicable to anrual

periods beginning on or after lst January

2024, requires a sellerlessee to

subsequently measure lease liabilities

arising from a leaseback in a way lhal il

does ltot recogoise any amount of the

gain or loss.

The amendmeDts are

effecliv€ for annual periods

beginning on or after January

1,2024. Earlier application is

permifled.

Amendments to IAS

I titled Non'current

Liabilities with

Covenants (issued in

Octobet 2022)

Th€ amendments, applicable to annual

periods beginningoll orafler ]st JsDuary

2024, improve the information an entity

provides about liabililies arising lrom

loan arrangemeDts for which ,n eDtity's

right to defer settlement of lhose

liabilities for at least twelve months after

lhe reporling period is subj€ct to the

entity complying wilh conditions

specified in the IoaD arrangemeDt-

The amendments aae

effective for anDual periods

beginning on or after January

1,2024. Earl ier applicalion is

permitted.

iii. Early adoption ofstandards

The Company did not early - adopt any new or amended standards early in the year under

()

f itlc Dcscl.iptio Effcclive Dile



Garissa Witer and Sewernge Company Ltd
Annuol R rt rnd Finrncixl St:rtements for thc ar ended June 30,2023

Notcs to the finarcial statements (continucd)

4. Summllry of Accounting Policies

The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below:

a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the entity expects to be entilled in a

contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalfofthird parties. The entity

recognizes rcvenue when it lransfers control ofa product or service to a customer.

i) Rev€nue from the sale of goods and scrvices is recognized in the year in which the

Company delivers productyservices to the customer, lhe cuslomer has accepted the

products/services and collectability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assured.

ii) Grnnts from Govcrnment Entities are recognized in the year in which the Company

receives such grants. Recurrenl grants are recognized in lhe siatement ofcomprehensive

income. Development/capital grants are recognized in lhe statement offinancial posilion

and realised in the statement ofcomprehensive income over the useful life oflhe assels

that have been acquired using such funds.

iii) Financc income comprises inlerest receivable from bank deposits and inveslment in

securilies, and is recognized in profit or Ioss on a time proportion basis using the effective

interest mte method.

iv) Dividcnd incomc is recognized in the income slal€ment in the year in which ihe right to

receive lhe paymenl is eslablished

v) Rent:rl incomc is recognized in the income slatement as it accrues using the effective

interest implicit in lease agreements.

vi) Other income is recognized as it accrues.

t0



Garissa Watcr !nd Serveragc Comp0ny Ltd
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts for thc year cnd€d June 30' 2023

Notcs to the fin:rncial stxtemcnts (continucd)

Summ:lry of Accounting Policics

b) In-kindcontributions

In-kind contributions are donations lhat a.e made to the Company in the form ofactual goods

andlor services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may include vehicles,

equipment, utilities or personnel services. Where the financial value received for in-kind

contributions can be reliably deterffined, the Company includes such value jn lhe statement of

comprehensive income both as revenue and as an expense in equal and opposite amounts;

otherwise, lhe contribution is not recorded but disclosed.

c) Property, phnt and cquipment

AII categories ofproperty, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Certain categories ofprcperty, plant and equipment are

subsequently carried at revalued anrounts, being their fair value at the date ofrevaluation less

any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where re-measurement at

re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset calegory are re-valued through periodic

valuations caoied out by independent extemal valuers.

|l



G:rrissa Watcr:rnd Sctvcrage Compnny Ltd
An nual and Financial Statcmcnts for (hc car cndcd Junc 30, 2023

Not€s to the linanci:tl st.tements (continued)

Summary of Accounting Policics

d) Deprccialion and impairment ofproperty, plant and cquipment

Freehold Iand and capital work in progress are not depreciated Capital work in progress

relates mainly to the cost ofongoing but jncomplete works on buildings and other civil works

and installations.

Deprcciation on prope(y, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a

straight-line/reducing balance basis to wrile down the cost of each asset or lhe re-valued

amount to its residual value over its estimated useful life The annual rales in use are:

A full year's depreciation charge is recognized both in the year ofasset Purchase and none in

lhe year of asset disposal. Items ofproperty, plaot and equipment are reviewed annually for

impaiment and accounted for in line with the provisions in the standard

e) Intangible lssets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated amortizatio[ and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on

a slraight-line basis over their estimaled usefill lives. The estimated useful life and amoaization

method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangibl€ assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately ale carried at cost less

accumulated imPairment losses

2%Land and Buildings

12.50%Furniture and Fittings

12.50%Equipment and Facilities

20%Motor Vehicles

ComPulers

t0%New Pipeline Extensions

t0%Boreholes

12

Item llltes



Garissa Water and Scrveragc Company Ltd
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcments Ior r endcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes to tlre financial statcnrcnts (continucd)

Summlrry of Accounting Policics

g) Investmcnt propcrty

Investment property, which is property held to eam rentals and./or for capital appreciation

(inc)uding property under construclion for such purposes), is measured inilially at cost,

iDcluding transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is measuted at fair

value. Gains or losses arising from changes irt lhe fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. An itvestment propeny is

derecognized upon disposal or when the investmenl propeny is permanently withdrawn from

use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gajn or loss arisirg

from the derecognition ofthe property (calculated as the difference between lhe net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period

in which the property is derecognized.

t3

f) Amortization and impairmcnt of intadgible assets

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the eslimated useful life of the

intangible asset. All intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the

carrying amount of an intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable

amount, an impailment loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its estimated

recoverable amount.



Grrissa Water and Sewerage ComPany Ltd
Annual Rcport and Fin^ncial Statcments for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notcs to the financial statcmcnts (continucd)

Summary of Accounting Policics

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement ofthe conesponding lease liability,

lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received

and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the eniity incurs an obligation for costs to

dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the

underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions ofthe lease, a provision

is recognized and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use

asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incured to

produce inventories. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the sho er period ofthe lease

term and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Ifa lease transfers owaership ofthe underlying

asset or the cost ofthe right-of-use asset reflects that the entity expects to exercise a purchase

option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful iife ofthe underlying asset.

The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. The righlof-use assets are

presenled as a separate line in the statement offinaDcial position.

j) Quotcd inveslments

Quoted investments arc classified as non-current assets and comprise marketable securities

traded freely at the Nairobi Securities Exchange or other regional and international securities

exchanges. Quoted investments are stated at fair value.

l4

h) Right ofUsc Asset

i) Fixcd interest invcstments (bonds)

Fixed-interest investments rcfer to inveshnent funds placed under Central Bank of Kenya

(CBK) long-term infrastructure bonds and other corporate bonds to eartr interest. Fixed-

interest investments are freely traded at the Nairobi Securities Exchange. The bonds are

measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss or at fair value tluough othe.

comprehensive income (FVOCI). (Wlrichever is applicable).



Garissa Water and Sewcrage Company Ltd
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the car endcd Junc 30, 2023

Notcs to the finnDcial statcments (continucd)

Summary of Accounting Policies

k) Urquofedinvestmcnts

UDquoted investments are stated at a cost under non-current assets and comprise equity shares

held in other Government-owned or controlled enlities that are not quoted in the Securities

Exchange. These arc measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

l) Inventolies

Inventories are stated at the lower cost and net realizable value. Cost comp ses direct

materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been

incuned in briDging the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated

using the weighted average cost melhod/ FIFO (Whichever is applicab)e). The Iet realizable

value represents the estimated selling price less all estjmated costs ofcompletion and costs to

be incured in marketing, selling and distribution.

m) Trade ard other receivubles

Trade and other receivables are recognized at amortized costless ailowances for any

uncollectible amounts. These are assessed for impairment continuously. An estimate is made

of doubtftl receivables based on a review of all outstandirg amounts at the year-end. Bad

debts are written offafter all efforts at recovery have been exhausted and when the necessary

approval to write offis gmnted. A report on losses and write-offs is disclosed on page 30 of
this report.

t5



Crrissa Watcr and Soverage Company Ltd
Annual Rcport xnd Finxncial StfltemeDts for thc ycxr cndcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Summary of Accounting Policies

n) Tuation

i) Current income t,rx

Cufient income tax assets and liabilities for the cuffent period are measured at the amount

expecled 1o be recovered ftom or pajd to lhe taxation authorities. The tax rales and tax laws

used to compute the amou[t are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the area where the Company operales and generates taxable income. Curent

income tax rclating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

not in the profit or loss statement. Cuffent income tax assets and liabilities for the current

period are measured at the amount expected Io be recovered from or paid to the taxation

authorities. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in lhe tax returns forsituations

in which applicable ta.x regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.

o) Def.rred tax

Defened lax is provided using the liability method oo temporary differences between the tax

bases ofassets and liabilities and their canying amounts for financial reporting purposes at

the reporting date.

Defered tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect

oftaxable temporary differences associated with inveslments in controlled entities, associates

and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of lhe reversal ofthe temporary differences

can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,

the carry forward of uoused lax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are

recognized to the extent that it is probable that tayable profit will be available against which

the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused

tax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deduclible temporary differences associated

with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests injoint ventures, deferred ta\

assets are rccognized only to the extent that the temporary differences will probably reverse

in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilized.

t6



Carissa Watcr and Serverage Company Ltd
Annual Rcport and Financial Statem€nts for lhe ycar crdcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes to the finarcial st:ltements (continued)

Summary of Accounting Polici€s

The carying amount ofdefe[ed tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficienl taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part oftle defened tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are

re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become

probable that future taxableprofits willallow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax lates that are expected to apply in the year

when the asset is realized orthe liability is seltled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have

been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting dale.

Defefied tax relating to items recognized oulside surplus or deficit is recognized outside

surplus or deficit. Defened tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying

transaction in net assets. Defered tax assets and deferred lax liabilities are offset ifa legally

enforceable right exists to set offcurrent tax assels against curent income tax liabilities and

the defened laxes relale to the same laxable entity and lhe same laxation aulhority.

p) BorrorYing costs

Boffowing costs directly attributable to lhe acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a subslantial period to get ready for

their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets untilthe assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale. To the extent that variable mte borowings are used to

finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an eff€ctive cash flow hedge ofinterest rate risk,

the effective portion of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and

reclassified to profit or loss when lhe qualifying asset impacts profit or loss. To the extent

that fixed-rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an

effective fair value hedge of interest rate risk, lhe capitalized borrowing costs reflect lhe

hedged interest rate. Investment income eamed on lhe temporary investment of specific

bonowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the booowing

costs eligible for capilalization. All other borowing cosls are recognized in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

11



Garissa Water and Servernge Company Ltd
Annual lieport and Financial Stalemcnts for the year endcd June 30, 2023

Notes to the financial stxtcments (continucd)

Summary of Accounting Policies

q) Crsh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash al the bank, short-term deposits

on call and highly Iiquid investments with an original maturity ofthree months or less, which

are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various Commercial Banks

at the end ofthe reporting Period

r) Borrorvings

Inlerest-bearing loans and overdrafu are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of

issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amotized cost

using the effective inlerest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account

any issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement Finance charges, including

premiums payable ofsettlement or redemption, are accounted for on an accrual basis and are

added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they a.e not senled in the

period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction of a project is

capilalized as part ofthe cost ofthe project.

s) Tride and o(her p:ryables

Trade and other payables are non_intelest bearing and are carried at amortized cost, which is

measured at the fair value ofthe contractual value ofthe consideration to be paid in future in

respect ofgoods and services supplied, whether billed to the entity or not, less any payments

made to the suppliers.

t3



Garissn Wrtcr nnd Scrver:rgc Company Ltd
Annu:rl lleport nnd Financial Statcmcnts Ior lhe ycar cnded June 30, 2023

Notes to thc financial statements (continucd)

Summary of Accounting Policies

t) Retiremcnt benefit obligations

The Company operates a defirled contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July

l, 201 l. The scheme is administered by an in-house team and is funded by contributions from

both the company and its employees. The company also contributes to the statutory National

Social Security Fund Q'JSSF). This is a defiDed contribution scheme registered under the

Natjonal Social Security Act. The company's obligation under lhe scheme is limited to

specific contributions legislated from tirne to time and is currently at l20Z ofthe employee's

salary (67o is contributed by the employee and 6% by the employer) per employee per month.

u) Provision for staff leave pay

Employees' entitlements to annual leave are recognized as they accrue. A provision is made

for the estinlated Iiability for annual leave at the repo ing date.

v) Erchangc rlte differences

The accounling records are maintained in lhe functional cufiency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operales, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies

during the yearlperiod are lranslated into the funclional cuftency usjng the exchaDge rates

prevailing at the dates of the lransaclions or valuation where items are re-measured. Any

foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fiom the settlement ofsuch transactions and the

translation at year-end exchange mtes of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

)9



Garissa Watcr
Annurl Rcport

and Serveragc ComP:rnY Ltd
and Financial St:rtements for the year ended June 30' 2023

Notes to th€ financial statements (continued)

Summary of Accounting Policies

w) Budget informrtion

The original budget fo t FY 2022-2023 was approved by the Board ofDirectors on l9 August

2022. The Company's budget is prepared on a different basis from the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The finalcial statements are prcpaled on an

accrual basis using a classification based on the natule of expenses in the stalement ofprofit

or loss, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis The amounts in the financial

statements were recast fiom lhe accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified bypresentalion

to be on the same basis as lhe approved budget. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts,

preparedonacomparablebasistotheapprovedbudget,isthenpresentedinthestatementof

compa son ofbudgel and actual amounts. In addiljon to the Basis difference, adjustments to

amounts in the financial slatements are also made for differences in the formats and

classification schemes adopled for the presentation of the financial statements and the

approved budget. A statement to leconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included

in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the

statement of comprehensive income has been presented under note l8 of these financial

statements.
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Garissa \ atcr lnd Serycrage Company Ltd
Annual Rcport nnd Finan.i:rl Statcments for the yelr endcd June 30, 2023

Notes to thc financial statements (corltinucd)

Summary of Accounting Policics

t) Scrvice conccssion arrangemcnts

The Company analyses all aspects of service concession afiangements that it enters into in

determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,

where a private party contributes an assel to the arrangemenl, the Company recognizes that

asset when, and only when, it contrcls or regulates the services the operator must provide

together with lhe asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In lhe case ofassets

other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or

otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the eDd of the arrangement. Any

assets so recognized arc measured al lheir fair value. To the exlent that an asset has been

recognized, the Company also recognizes a cofiesponding liability, adjusted by a cash

consideration paid or received.

y) Comparative figures

Where necessary conlparative figures for the previous financial year have been ameDded or

reconfigured to conform lo the required changes in presenlation.

z) Subscqucnt events

There have been no events after the finarcial year end with a significant impact on the financial

stalements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

5. Significrrlt Judgments and Sources of Estimation Unccrtainty
The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires

management to makejudgmenls, estimates and assumptiolrs that affect the repofled amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and lhe disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at lhe end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability

affected in future periods.

2l



Garissa Water and S€rverige Complny Ltd
Annual Rcport tnd Finrncial Stitcmcnts for thc ycar cnded June 30, 2023

Notes to the financial stntcments (continued)

Summary of Accounting Polici€s

^) Estimatcs tnd assumPtion3

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources ofestimation uncertainty at lhe

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below The

Company based its assumptions and estimales on pammeters available when the financial

slatements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of

the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when tlley occur'

b) Useful lives and rcsidual valucs

The useful lives and residual values ofassels are assessed using lhe following indicators to inform

potential future use and value for disposal:

. The condilion ofthe asset is based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Company

. The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

. The nalure ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

. Availability offunding to replace the assets.

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the informatjon

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note l4

Provisions are measured at the maDagement's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the efrect is material.
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Garissa Water and Scwcrtlgc Comprny Ltd
Annual llcport rrd Financi:rl Statcmcnts for the ycrr endcd Junc 30, 2023

Notes (o the finan.ial statcmcnts (continucs)

6. Operating Revcnuc

7. Other IDconrc

8. Strff Costs

9. Bo:rrd llxpenscs

Water sales during the year 301,060,526 3',1 5,513 ,526
Other income from operations 492,400
'Iotal 301,060,526 376,005,926

wIsil @rG'I

County Covem ent ofGarissa 38,330,958 30,000,000
World Bank WSDP Project 459,844,726 228,000,000
WSTF - UBSUP Project 8,257,78t
WSTF - Conditional Liquidity Scheme Crant (CLSG) 21,455,480
Hulugho Reverse Osmosis Project 7,920,000
Totfll 498,17 s,684 295,633,261

WIffi wIEil

Salaries, Wages & SIatutory deductions 9),37 6,839

Training ald workshop 64 500 166,800
'Iotlll 9l,.t,ll J39 38,599,1,19

ryr6il ryIRil
trsd tftE

Ilonoraria 640,000 480,000
Directors Allowance 242,000 262,000
'Iotal

712,000

ffi @IIFIil@
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Garissa W.tcr and Serv€rage Company Ltd
Annual Rcpo rt flnd Fin{nciil StAtements for thc year cnded .Iunc 30, 2023

Notes to the fin:rncial st:rtemcnts (continued)

10. Administr.tive Ex nscs

l1.o tin nditurc

12. Dcpreci^tioD and Amortizr!tion Bxpenscs

1,045,000 1,2 BB,5 5 5Travelling and Accommodation
805,800 573,470Stationery and Printjng
100,000Professional and Legal Services
687,304 945,260Postal /telephone/courier serv.
244,917 403,723Electricity-Admiristration

20,000 7 47,7 60Promotion and Advertisement
363,000 7,7 30,780Staff Welfare and Utility

105,000

85,000Corporate Social ResponsibilitY
46,278,621 47,834,884Provision for bad and doubtful debts
2,240,000 540,00 0Rent & Rates

6,792

5t,909,612 18,156,221Totxl Board Expenscs

@r?til w6lI'GfiT ll

23,288,026 44,250,34'tOperation and Maintenance

57,784,408 18,050,1l9Electricity
2,649,990 13,500,886Tra$port operations and maintenance

6,6s3,636Maintenance ofplants, Equipment & Structures

1,590,560Security Services
8,508,630 8,540,850Chemicals
2,121,858 1,247,720WASITEB
1,800,000 1,800,000WARMA

10t,112,503 95,63,1,1r8Total Maintcn,rnc€ Dxpenses

@rfltil @IilINIIIE

36,610,943 43,354,085Property, plant, and equipment
36,610,943 ,13,351,035Total Deprecixtion nnd Amortiz.tion

@IRil ffiINITE

24
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Garissa Water and Sclvcrage Company Ltd
Annual Ilcport nnd Finrncial Statemcnts for lhc year cnded Junc 30, 2023

Notes to the financialstatemcnts (continued)

13. FiDancc costs

14, Provision for Audit Fccs

15. Pro ect Cost

2,211,7 40 1,,077,633Bank charges
2,211,710 I,07't,633Tot:rl

i@rmil 7Wr6il@

233,856 233,856Provision for Audit Fees

233,856 233,356Totrl

ffi wIGil]I@EE

Haraiab Water & SanitatioD Pro,ect
2 5,000Project Launch
50,000Community Awareness Creation

Proiect Design

60,71.7
Project Supervision, Monitoring and Contract
Management
100/o Contingency
Sub-total 744,440
Libahlow Water & Sanitatior Proiect

1,136,423Borehole Hybrid Equipping & Protection Works

50m3elevated Steel Tank on 10m Tower 590,577
Project Supervision, Monitoring and Contract
Management

101,980

Sub-total 1,A2A,9AO
Shebta-aad Water & Sanitation Proiect
Borehole Hybrid Equippins 57 4,496
S0m3elevated SteelTank on 10m Tower 4,500,000
Risins Main and Distribution PipeliDe 1,583,288

2no. Water Kiosks With 5,000 L,tres Storage Tank 365,7 53.44

1no. Yard Tap 1.63,495.A7

25
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Cxrissa Wntcr and Setverage Company Ltd
Arrnual Repo rt xnd Financial Stitements for thc ycar cnrled June 30' 2023

2 No. Livestock Tro h 997,770.56

980Project Supervision, Monitoring and Contract
Ma ement

8,185,783Sub-total
WSDP Pro ect

4,t79,956 5,515,700Domestic Travel and Subsistence
955,000 87 7,7 06Printin & Advertisin
374,000 120,000Su lies & servicesHos itali

240,910,125 77 5,427,361CivilWorks
2.052.290office Consumables

99,907 ,327Consultan
35,839,500Procurement of Vehicles

2,2A4,51,LProcurement of Plastic Tanks
6,683,849 .97 7,952,6s6Vehicle Maintenance

5,648,646 10,080lnsurance Costs
50,21.4Bank Cha s

41,811,560Office Furniture
20,528,A97Others

+57,069,405 227,993,573Sub-total
UBSUP Pro cct

146,659ect AdministrationP
7,690,252Subsidies

7,436,917Sub - Total
WSTF CLSG Pro ect

7,050,322PersonnelCosts
8,000,000Electrici
4,705,700Maintenance

7,015,000Direct Opex (excluding Electricity and ChemicalsJ

690,000Chemicals
3,810Others

27,464,832Sub - Total
llul ho Reverse Osmosis Pro ect

402,1L0480Preliminary, Supervision, security and Accompanying
Measures

s,217,600
Installation Of 2m',/hr. Reverse Osmosis Water
Treatment Plant at Hulugho Girls Secondary School,

Includin Solar tem

7,326,720Construction Of Elevated Plastic Of 10m3(2 Na) at 15

Meters H
480 6,945,830Sub - Total

457,070,2A5 274,400,390Total Proiect Costs
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Garissa Watcr and Selvcragc Company Ltd
Annual Reports and Financial Statcments
For the year endcd Junc 30,2023

Notcs to thc financial statemcnts (continued)

16,l'ro Plant and ul nl crlt

Cost
On 1'r July
2022

668,095 |,022;17'7 7'.|,2t6,942 |,642,293 102,662,988 t5,022,352 38,125,731 236,361,1?8

Additions 660,000 4,727,546 s,387,s{6
On 30rh Junc
2023

668,095 I 022 7 1'1 '77,816,942 1,642,293 102,662,988 15,022,352 42,853,27',l 241,148,124

Dcpreciatio
n and
inrpairmcnt
On l't July
2022

l18,419 5,429,162 70,145,268 2,629,708 9s,867,S36 16,298,507 15,212,.t51 205,701,981

Depreciation
charge for
the year

t3,362 337,516 9;734,6t8 205,28't 20,532,598 1,502,235 4,285,328 36,610,913

On 30'h June
2023 i I I t I 5,767,278

79,879,886 2,834,995 I16,400,434 17,800,'142 t9,497,779 242,312,924

Nctbool(
values

On 30 Junc
2022 668,095 |,022,711

17,2t6,942 |,642,293 102,662,988 15,022,352 38,125,731 236,361,178

On 30tl'June
2023

651,733 685,261 68,142,324 1,437,006 82,130390 13,520,117 38,567,919 205,137,781

ffi ffiM iEill

iG M ]R!IH

rI

Enr
Iilil !GME @

ffiffiffi
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Garissn Water and Scrverage Company Ltd
Annual Rcports and Financial Statemcnts

. For thc vcrr endcd June 30 2023

Notcs to thc financial stAtcments (continued)

17, Tr,tde and Other Reccivables

17. Trade Receivablcs

Notes to thc finiDcitl st:ltcmcnts (contin cd)

18,llxnk :rnd Crtsh ll:rl,rnccs

836,697,642868,005,700

100,000 100,000share receivable
166,5156t9,464Prepayment

868,725,168 836,964,197Net trndc rnd other rcceivnbles

ryrtuilwI6il

914,284,321 878,532,566Gross trade receivables
41,834,88446,278,621Provision for doubtful receivables

836,697,682863,005,700Net lrade receivables

of J 30, gcing lysi ctridof hI clllhc ll n:lAs u gr0ssnc
26,533,19527,428,529Less than 30 days
38,76t,27239,71,4,240Between 30 and 60 days
40,356,6954t,999,845Between 6l and 90 days
55,14',7,64857,420,000Between 9l and 120 days

'7 17 ,733,'7 567 47 ,'121 ,7 07Over 120 days
373,532,566914,284,321

wM ffi

1,484,84015,021,216Cash at bank

Cash in hand
3,6001,5t 6;76tMobile money account (880600)

16,537,911 1,138,410

ffiffi

23

Trade Debtors

reccivablcs rvas as follorvs:

Tolxl



Carissa Water und Servcragc Cornpany Ltd
Annual Reports and Financi:rl Stntemcnts
For thc ycar cndcd Junc 30 2023

Notes to thc financial statcmcnts (continucd)

Det:riled analysis of the cash and crsh cquivalents

19. Ordinl Sh:rre Cx itxl

20. Cx tll Fund

Revenue Accounts - FCB 2976982901 2,546 7 55,049

Development AccouDt - KCB
)0,592,856

Reserve Account - Equity 58029748163 100,956 69,132
General AccoLnt - FCB 2976982903 (100,000)

Reserve Account -FCB 0 2976982902

Post Bank Account 07441300t1397 73,850 47,400
Bul la Noor Project 2,039 2,039
Drought Emergency Proiect 1207726249 993 993
WSTF - GGEP Harajab Water
Proiect

29'7 6982927 l3 li
WSTF - GGEP Libahlow Water
Proiect

2976982928 105 405

WSTF - GGEP Shebta-aad Water
Proiect

2976982926 76,252 76,2s2

WSTF - UBSUP Project 05802',7 934 t2t 8 516,895 516,895

WSDP Account - Equity 05802'19't2017 9
2,?'14,921 10,862

WSTF CLSG Account - Equity 0580280412465 5,800 5,800
WSTF Hulugho Reverse Osmosis
Proiecl

297 6982932 913,690

'fot:rl t 5,021,216 l,{8,r,8.r0

lt t@ITEil
frEArt

1I l'EmltlE tmt

Aulhorizcd:

5,000 ordinary shares ofKshs.20 par value each 100,000 t00,000
Issucd and fully paid:

5,000 ordinary shares ofKshs. par value each 100,000 r00,000

@rtil @r!il

Fixed Assets 1_1,969,799 1r,969,799
Inherited Debtors 21,351,302 21,351,302
Inherited Creditors (1,s62,616) (1,s62,616)

I r,758,185 31,753,185

ffi ?wIEII
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Carissa Water and Servcrage Company Ltd
Annual Rcports and Financial Statcments

' For lhe ye:lr ended June 30 2023

22. Borrorvings

llctircmcnt Dcncfi t Obligfl tions

Retirem€nt berefi t Asset/ Liability

The entity has operated a defined benefit scheme for all full-time employees from Jaruary l, 201l '

The scheme is administered by British American Insurance Company while ITSL Trusr Company

Limited are custodians ofthe scheme. The scheme is based on 7.5 p€rcent ofthe salary ofan employee

al the time ofretirement.

An actuarial valuation to fulfil the financial reporting disclosule requilements oflPSAS 39 was not

caried out. on this basis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation aDd the related current

service cost and past service cost were measured using lhe Projected Unit Credit Method'

30

) Domestic Borrorvings
39,506,0790Balance at the begjnning ofthe year

00Domestic borrowings duriDg the year
(0)(0)Repayments during the Year

00Bal:rnce at thc cnd ofthe Ye,tr
39,506,0790c) Tot"l Balarce at en,l of th€ pcriod c = i+b

@IGil @IEilI@

IGhs KshsKshs Kshsl(shs
30,115,428 26,t82,801Curent benefi t obligalion

Non-current benefit

obligation
30,t t5,.128 26,182,801'l otxl

ffi lffi
@ EIEI'EDIEEIE

ffi

Notcs to the financial stateDents (continued)

21. Retained Earnings

The retained eamings represent amounts available for distribution to lhe company's shareholders.

Undistributed retained eamings are utilised to finance the comPany's business activities'

t



Garissa Watcr and Scrverage Company Ltd
Annunl Reports and Financial Staternents
For the ycar cndcd June 30 2023

23, Trrdc:lnd Other Payablcs

Ageing Analysis for Trade and Othcr Payablcs

Trade creditors 92,431,t39 84,371,040

Salary payable 4,470,912 30,115,428

t27 ,7 18,94',1Other payables I t2,785,235
221,620,t98Tolxl 227,27 t,703

@,I6iI @IGIil

50%Under one vear 112,310,499 I I I,363,134 49%

l-2 years 53,909,039 24% 47,727,0s7 21%

2-3 years 24,708,310 |% 20,454,453 9%

Over 3 years 33,693, t50 1s%o 47,'721,0s9 2t%
'fot:rl 221,620,998 227,211,703

ll

2022-2023 "1, ol tha
l0lxl

2021-2022 ol, ot the
totxl



Garissa Water and Scrvcragc Compllny Ltd
Annunl Rcports and Finxnci.l Statcments
For the c:!r cndcd June 30 2023

Notes to the financial statemcnts (continued)

Othcr Disclosures
24, Related Party Disclosures

County Government of Garissa

The County Govemment ofGarissa is the principal shareholder ofthe Company, ho)ding 100%

of the Company's equity interesl. The County of Govemment of Garissa has provided full

guarantees to all long-term Ienders ofthe Company, both domestic and extemal.

Other related parties include:

. The County Deparlment in charge of water

. County Govemment of Garissa

Trans:rctions rvilh relfl tcd pxrtics

,l) Srles to relxtcd partics

Rent Income from govt. agencies

Water sales to Govt. agencies

Interest income from Govt Commercial Banks

Interest income from T-bills and Bonds

Others (Specify)

Total

b) Pur.hases from rehted p:rrties

Purchase ofwater from go14 service providers

Rent expenses paid to govt ageDcies

Training and conference fees paid to govt. agencies

Bank charges paid to Govt Commercial banks

Interest expense to investments by olher govt. entities

Others (specify)

Totrl
b) Grants from the Govcrnment

Grants from National Govt Agencies

30,000,000 4,000,000Grants from the County Government

;m ffiIIIEE
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Annual RcDorls and Financial Statcmcn(s
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25. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign cunency. The company's overall dsk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

potenlial adverse effect of such risks on ils performance by setling acceptable levels of risk. The

conpany does not hedge any risks and has in place policies lo ensure that credit is only extended to

customers with an established credit history. The company's financial risk management objectives and

policies are detailed below:

(i) Crcdit risk

The Company has exposure to credit dsk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounls in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,

as well as lrade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial inveslmenls.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,

experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or extemal assessments

following limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the stalement of financial position are

net of allowances for doubtful receivables, eslimated by the compaoy's management based on prior

experience and their assessmenl ofthe curent economic environment.

Donations in kind
30,000,000 ,r,000,000Tolr I

c) Expens€s incurred on b€halfofrclatcd pxrty
Payments ofsalaries and wages for xxx employees

Payments for goods and services for xxx
Tolil

d) Kcy mnnagemcnt compcnsation

Direclors' emoluments

Compensalion to key management

33
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Garissa Water nnd Servernge ComPany Ltd
Annual Reports and Financial Statcmcnts

' For the yea r cndcd .Iunc 30 2023

Noles to the financial statemet!as (continued)

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in tle financial statements replesenting the entity's

maximum exposure to credit dsk without taking into account the value of any collateral obtained is

made up as followsl

On 30 June 2023

868,005,700Trade Receivables

Other Receivables

Investments
16,s37,690Bank balances

88,t,513,390Totrl
On 30 Junc 2022 (Previous Ycir)

836,697,682Receivables

Olher Receivables

Inveslments

1,488,439Bank balances

838,r 36,121Totxl

ffi ffi ]ffi ffi

1.1



Girissa Watcr and Seweragc Company Ltd
Annual Reports xnd Finrrlcill Statements
For thc ycrr cnded June 30 2023

Credit Risk (Continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading. The

credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounts

that the company has recognised in the linancial statements is considered adequate to cover any

potentially inecoverable amounts. The company has a significant concentmtion of credit risk on

amounts due from trade receivables.

The board of direclors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters

within which the various asp€cts ofcredit risk management are operated.

ii) Liquidity risk managcm€nt

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management resls wilh the Company's directors, who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for lhe management ofthe Company's short,

medium and longterm funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages

Iiquidity risk through continuous monitoring offorecasts and actual caslr flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contraclual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the conlractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal lheir carrying

balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

On 30 June currcnt ycar
92,431,) 39 92,431,139Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings
1,209,408 4,209,108Provis;ons

Deferred income
43,626,429 43,626,429Errployee benefi t obligation
tJ0,266,976 110,266,97 6Tot:tl

On 30 June prcvious year
84,37I,040 84,371 ,040Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings
233,856 233,856Provisions

Defcrred income
34,720,353 34,720,353Employe€ benefi t obligation
I19,325,318 r 19.325,348'folxl

mr!ilEt ffi
-iiltl

ffirat IEI6f
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For the ye,lr cndcd .Iunc 30 2023

(iii) Market risk

The board has put in place an intemal audit firnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Company on an ongoing basis and evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal

accounting and operational conlrols.

Market risk is the risk arising from chalges in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and

foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income ot the value of its holding of financial

inslruments. The objective ofmarket risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures

within acceprable parameters while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for managing market

risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company's Department in charge of risk management is responsible for the development of

detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by the Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implemenlation ofthose policies.

There has been no change lo the ComPany's exposure lo market risks or how it manages and measures

the sk.

n) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk lhat the Company's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.

This exposes the company lo cash flow interest rate risk. The interest mte risk exposure arises from

interest rate movements on the company's deposits.

i) Managcment ofinterest rate risk

To manage the interest rale risk, management has endeavoured lo banl wilh institutions that

offer favourable interest rates.
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G:rrissa Watcr nnd Servcragc Company Ltd
Annual Rcporls and Financirl Statements
For the year cnded Junc 30 2023

Notes to the financial statemcnts (continued)

ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabiliti€s

n) Financial instruments mcasured at fair value

Determination offair value and fair values hierarchy

IFRS 7 sp€cifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whetler the inputs to those

valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data

oblained from independent sources; unobseryable inputs reflect the Company's market

assumptions. These two types ofinpuls have created lhe following fair value hierarchy:

i) Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assets or liabililies.

This level includes listed equity securities and debt instrumenls on exchanges.

ii) Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as p ces) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices).

iii) Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instrufienls

with significant unobse able componerts. This hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. The Company considers relevant and

observable market prices in ils valuations where possible.

iv) Capital Risl( Managcment
The objective of the Company's capilal risk management is to safeguard the Board's ability

to continue as a going concem. The Company's capital structure comprises the following

funds:

Revaluation reserve

Relained earnings 833,921,443 7'76,177,547

Capital reserve 31,758,485 3 t,'758,485

Tolrl funds 865,679,923 307,936,032

Tolal borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances 16,53'1,977 t,488,440

Net debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents)

Gcnrirg 0"1 0v"

@IGil @rIil
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26. Incorporation
The Company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act and is domiciled in

Kenya.

27. Events Aftcr lhc Reporting Period
There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporling period.
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20. Appendices

Appendix l: progress on follow-up oI auditor recommcndations.

The following is the summary ofissues raised by the extemal auditor, ard management comments that were provided to the auditor

1. Rcvenue

l.l. Failure to

Bill All

Customers

The statement o[ profit or loss and
other comprehensive income reflecrsIncome from operations of
Kshs.376,005,926 as disclosed in Nore
4 to the financial statements. Included
in the amount is Kshs.375,513,526 for
water sales. However, a review of the
income records revealed that the
number of customers served by the
Lompany was 18,126, out of which only
2,L28 ot 72Vo are metered. Water
billing was made to only 11,565
cusLomers leaving 6561 customers not
billed and hence loss of revenue.
h addition, the Company has been

fo

u5 n dlre !va ter riffsta aexp rovedpp
1on 4 M 2 10 a0 dnay e dcte havetoexp

revibeen e od n 2une 10 2 r

The low merering level is being cured oy
installing meters. We have reciived a
grant in the form ofmeters under the
World Bank-funded UTF programme,
not only for the master meters. to
ensure 1000/o metering and we have
embarked on installing and consumer
education to charge the culture where
consumers remove or vandalize the
meters. We have also requested the
Counfy Government to pass stringent
by-laws prohibiting tampering with
meters. Installation ofthe meters is
ongoing.

Not

Resolved
FY 2023t24

ffiMffi
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Notice No.5321, Vol. CXlt - No.49. DaEe
1724. Further, the Company Aisciosel
water sales of Kshs.375,513,526 but
collected Kshs.124,570,559 or 33%.
The Management is notable to
maximize cash collections, a situation
likely to affect the liquidiry of the
LOmpany.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and
completeness ofthe water sales balanceof Kshs.375,513,526 could nor be
confirmed.

ustment as per Gazettefurther adj The company is in the process of

renewing its tariffand the process is at

an advanced stage.

2.

Unsupported

Trade

Receivables

The statement of financial Dosition
reflects the trade and other rec;ivables
balance of Kshs.835,964, 197 as
disclosed in Note 12 to the financial

r,
any

state ments. H ver th omC n didpa vIno omai lltai an u id ted cep lesvab
le r th ta ou ddge show the ab clan e

rob tugh th ae moforward, u tn accrued
ud rl theng year recets epaymen ndd a

the balance carried fo rward Fu erth
rhe oC m nodid tp rovide anp ingage

na a s rhof recee va lesb ttha u ld

The company maintained the ledger but
the data was in PDF formal We are in
the process ofmigrating to a more
robust and efficient software (World
Bank UTF programme) which has
already been funded and is at the
procurement stage, The new software
will have better controls and reports
that will cure the above.

Not

Resolved
FY 2023124
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As explained above the current software
is not able to age debtors but this is
being addressed as above too.

3. Cash and

Cash

Equivalents

The statement of financial position
reflects a cash and cash equivalent
balance of Kshs.1,488,439 as disclosed
in Note 13 to the financial statements.
However, the statement of cash flows
as of 30 June 2022 reflects a cash and
cash equivalent balance of
Kshs.95,751,935 resulring in
unreconciled and unexplained variance
of Kshs.95,263,496.

Further, the statement of cash flows
reflects bank overdraft in investing
acrivities of Kshs.39,505,079. However,
the Management did not provide Board
approval minutes and agreement from
the Commercial bank to utilize
overdraft facilities contrary to Section

the Public Finance2A 4 of

We have noted the variance in the cash
and cash equivalent and the statement
ofcash flows and will reconcile the
same.

The Board approval minutes and

agreement from the Commercial bank
to utilize overdraft facilities are

available foryour review.

Resolved

ffi ffi ffi

4t

)'

disclose what amounts are owed and
for how long.
In the circumstances, the accuracy and

completeness oftrade and other

receivables balance of Kshs,836,964,

197 could not be confirmed

Fy 2022/23
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nagement Act, 2072 which states
that art accounting officer for a national
government entity shall not cause a
bank account of the entity to be
overdrawn beyond the limit authorized
by the National Treasury or a board of
a national government entity.
In the circumstances, the accuracy and

completeness ofthe cash and cash

equivalents balance of Kshs.1,488,439

as of30 ]une 2022 could not be

confirmed and the Management was

also in contravention ofthe law.

Ma

4.

Unreconciled

Personnel

Costs

personnel cosis balance of
Kshs.88,599.149 as disclosed in Note s
to the financial statements. However. a
review of payroll and ledsers and
schedules revealed an expen-diture of
Kshs.79,405,472 and Ksh;.88,432,349
resulhng in a variance of
Kshs.9,193,677 and Kshs.166.800
respectively.

and

s tela tmen o rotro sosp
tho re mco ns ve n meco re eflprehe cts

the accuIn the circumstan ces

This was a misstatement and was
corrected. The Iedger is available for
further review
The fshs. 166,800 is the stafftraining

costs incured during the period under

review.

Not

Resolved
FY 2023124
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pers
99, 1

co ness onop tcos
ba n ofcea BKshs.B 5 94 uco ld no I

eb confi rmed.

7. Unrecord

cd Metcr

DeDosits

The statement of financial Dosition
reflects the trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.227,271,703 as
disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements. Included in the amount is a
Kshs nil balance for meLer deposils.
However, a review of income ledgers
revealed thaL customers paid an
unknown amount of meter deposits
during water connections. The
Management did not maintain a
separate bark account for customer
deposits and relevant registers.
Further, the Management did nor
account for the customer deposits as
payables but income against best
accounting practices.

ln the circumstances, the disclosure
and completeness of customer
deposits could not be confirmed.

Management has noted the observation

and is in the process ofacquiringa

robust system under the World Bank

UTF programme thatwill enable the

recording ofthe same as the current

system is not able to produce a report

on the same-

Not

Resolved
Fy 2023t24
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8. Unsuppo

rted

Finance

Costs

The statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income reflects
the finance costs balance of
Kshs.1,077,633 as disclosed in Note 9
to the financial statements. However,
the expenditure was not supported by
ledgers.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and
completeness of the finance costs
balance of Kshs.1,077,633 could not be
confirmed.

Attached is the ledger for finance costs

foryour review.
Resolved FY 202U22

9. Unsuppo

rted

Prior

Year

Adiustm

ents

changes in net assets

reflects an unexplained and

unsupporLed prior-year adjustment of
Kshs.10, 175,013.

In the circumstances, the financial

statements could not be confirmed

The statement of

This refers to prioryear balances

brought forward for revenue reserves

now corrected.

ffi ffi
Itclircnct r-o. rrrr
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The other Issues raised are being addressed inFy 2023124.

Name Mohamed Mohamud Dolal

Signature

Managing Director

Date.... \ a,q. 33
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Appendir II: Projects Implemented by the Company
Projects

Projects implemented by the Compady are Funded by development partncrs.

Water & SanihtionHarajab RUP/I/W &vcARISSA,/GAWASCO/
HARA.JAB/I WSTF 6 Months

Libahlow Water & Sanitation
Proje€r

RUP/ I /W&YGARISSA/GAWASCO/
LIBAHLOWl2 WSTF 6 Months

Shebla-aad Water & Sanihlion
Projecr

RUP/I /W&Si/OARISSA,/GAWASCO/
SHEBTA.AAD/3 WSTF 6 Monihs

Wsdp Proj€cr IDA CREDIT NO:60290/60i00 World Bank 4YRS

UBSUP Pro 02HS/N W WDA./cARlSSA.iO5 8 WSTF 6 Months
CLSC Projecr

WSTF 6 Monrbs
HuluAho Reverse Osmosis

fu P/ I /'IYIGARISS'HULUG HO/ I WSTF 6 Monlhs

46
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WSTF

WSTF

WSTF

19,258,4347000/ot9,254,438 8,25A,425

I Harajab
Water &
Sanitation
Project

23.036,03423,035,629 70l%o

2 Libahlow
Water &
Sanitation
Project 23,036,034

700% 19,115,4551.9,039,2L3

shebta-Aad
Water &
Sanitation
Project t9,rt9,465

99o/o 459,A44,726

WORLD

BANK457,069,805
4 Wsdp

Project 459,A44,726

WSTF680/o 17,214,22317,214,223 71,637,67L
5 UBSUP

Project

700% 24,431,493 WSTF21,455,480 21,,449,6A0
6 CLSG

Project

93o/o 13,200,000 WSTF72,226,310

'7 Hulugho
Reverse

Osmosis

Project 13,200,000

tmM mE TffiIM
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Recording ofTransfcrs from Other Govcrnment Entitics

Ministry/County
Department of Water Recurrent 38,330,958 38,330,958, 38,330,958
Tol:rl

38J30,958 38J30,958, 38"330,958
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